

The City of West Jordan, Utah

Ordinance No. 26-41

**An Ordinance Amending the 2009 West Jordan City Code
(Temporary Merchants) Title 4, Chapter 2, Article E**

Whereas, the City of West Jordan ("City") adopted West Jordan City Code ("City Code") in 2009; and the City Council of the City ("Council" or "City Council") desires to amend Title 4, Chapter 2, Article E of the City Code ("**proposed City Code amendments**"); and

Whereas, the City Council desires to simplify and clarify provisions of the City Code regarding licensing the of temporary merchants; and

Whereas, the City Council finds it to be in the best interest of the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City to adopt the proposed City Code amendments.

Now therefore, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of West Jordan, Utah as follows:

Section 1. Amendment of City Code Provision. City Code Title 4, Chapter 2, Article E is amended as shown in Attachments 1 (Legislative Version) and 2 (Clean Version) to this Ordinance.

Section 2. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance is declared to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder shall not be affected thereby.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon posting or publication as provided by law and upon (i) the Mayor signing the Ordinance, (ii) the City Council duly overriding the veto of the Mayor as provided by law, or (iii) the Mayor failing to sign or veto the Ordinance within fifteen (15) days after the City Council presents the Ordinance to the Mayor.

Passed by the City Council of the City of West Jordan, Utah this 28th day of July 2026.

City of West Jordan

By: 
[Jessica Wignall \(Aug 4, 2026 16:24:17 MDT\)](#)
Jessica Wignall
Council Chair

Attest:

 

Cindy M. Quick, MMC
Council Office Clerk

Voting by the City Council

Council Chair Jessica Wignall

"Yes"



"No"



Council Vice-Chair Kent Shelton



Council Member Bob Bedore

~ absent ~

Council Member Annette Harris



Council Member Zach Jacob



Council Member Chad Lamb



Council Member Kayleen Whitelock



Presented to the Mayor by the City Council on August 4, 2026.

Mayor's Action: X Approve Veto

By: 
Mayor Dirk Burton

Aug 5, 2026
Date

Attest:

 
Tangee Sloan, MMC, UCC
City Recorder

Statement of Approval/Passage (check one)

 X The Mayor approved and signed Ordinance No. 26-41.

 The Mayor vetoed Ordinance No. 26-41 on .

 The City Council overrode the veto of the Mayor by a vote of to .

 Ordinance No. 26-41 became effective by operation of law without the Mayor's approval or disapproval.

 
Tangee Sloan, MMC, UCC
City Recorder

Certificate of Publication

I, Tangee Sloan, certify that I am the City Recorder of the City of West Jordan, Utah, and that a short summary of the foregoing ordinance was published on the Utah Public Notice Website on the 7th day of August 2026. The fully executed copy of the ordinance is retained in the Office of the City Recorder pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, 10-3-711.

 
Tangee Sloan, MMC, UCC
City Recorder

(Attachments on the following pages)

Attachments 1 and 2 to

Ordinance No. 26-41

**An Ordinance Amending the 2009 West Jordan City Code
(Temporary Merchants) Title 4, Chapter 2, Article E**

Attachment 1 – Title 4, Chapter 2, Article E – Legislative Version

Attachment 2 – Title 4, Chapter 2, Article E – Clean Version

(See the following pages for the attachment.)

ARTICLE E. TEMPORARY AND SEASONAL MERCHANTS

SECTION:

4-2E-1: License Required

4-2E-2: License Fee

4-2E-3: Participant License Required

4-2E-4: Merchant And Sponsor; Information Required

4-2E-1: LICENSE REQUIRED:

It is unlawful for any person to engage in, carry on, or conduct the business of a temporary merchant in the city without first obtaining a temporary merchant license. (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

4-2E-2: LICENSE FEE:

The license fee for a temporary merchant license shall be as provided in the consolidated fee schedule . (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

4-2E-3: PARTICIPANT LICENSE REQUIRED:

A participant shall not be required to obtain a temporary merchant license, but it is unlawful for a participant to transact any business at a sales event without acting under the sponsorship of a person or business holding a valid city temporary merchant license. (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

4-2E-4: MERCHANT AND SPONSOR; INFORMATION REQUIRED:

A. Required Information: Every temporary merchant must submit to the business license authority , at least 15 days prior to a sales event , the following information:

1. A list of all participants, including their names and addresses;
2. Location of the sales event ;
3. Dates of commencement and termination of the sales event ; and
4. Letter from property owner granting use of property for temporary location.

B. Duty To Update Participant List: A temporary merchant must notify the business license authority and update the list of participants if additional participants are added after submission of the application.

C. Expiration: A temporary merchant license is valid for 90 days from the date it is issued.

(Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

1 **ARTICLE E. TEMPORARY AND SEASONAL MERCHANTS**

2 SECTION:

3 4-2E-1: License Required

4 4-2E-2: License Fee

5 4-2E-3: Participant License Required

6 ~~4-2E-4: Temporary Merchant Sponsor License Required~~

7 4-2E-~~54~~: Merchant And Sponsor; Information Required

8
9 4-2E-1: LICENSE REQUIRED:

10 It is unlawful for any person to engage in, carry on, or conduct the business of a temporary
11 merchant in the city without first obtaining a ~~city~~ temporary merchant license ~~in addition to a~~
12 ~~general city business license~~. (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

13
14 4-2E-2: LICENSE FEE:

15 The license fee for a ~~city~~ temporary merchant license shall be as provided ~~by city council~~
16 ~~resolution~~ in the consolidated fee schedule . (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

17
18 4-2E-3: PARTICIPANT LICENSE REQUIRED:

19 A participant shall not be required to obtain a ~~city~~ temporary merchant license, but it is
20 unlawful for a participant to transact any business at a sales event without ~~first obtaining a~~
21 ~~general city business license and without~~ acting under the sponsorship of a person or business
22 holding a valid city temporary merchant license. (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

23
24 ~~4-2E-4: TEMPORARY MERCHANT SPONSOR LICENSE REQUIRED:~~

25 ~~It is unlawful for any person to act in the capacity of a temporary merchant sponsor in the city~~
26 ~~without first obtaining a general city business license. (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)~~

28 4-2E-~~54~~: MERCHANT AND SPONSOR; INFORMATION REQUIRED:

29 A. Required Information: Every temporary merchant ~~sponsor and person or business holding~~
30 ~~a city temporary merchant license~~ must submit to the business license authority , at least
31 ~~fifteen (15)~~ days prior to a sales event , the following information:

32 1. A list of all participants, including their names and addresses;

33 2. Location of the sales event ;

34 3. Dates of commencement and termination of the sales event ; and

35 4. Letter from property owner granting use of property for temporary location.

36 B. Duty To Update Participant List: ~~In the event the temporary merchant sponsor or a person~~
37 ~~or business holding a city temporary merchant license shall desire to add additional participants~~
38 ~~after the above information has been submitted to the business license authority , such~~
39 ~~sponsor or~~ A temporary merchant must notify the business license authority and update the list
40 of participants if additional participants are added after submission of the application.

41 C. Expiration: A temporary merchant license is valid for 90 days from the date it is issued.

42 (Ord. 12-13, 6-13-2012)

Ordinance No. 26-41 Amd Title 4, Ch 2, Art E Temporary Merchants

Final Audit Report

2026-08-07

Created:	2026-08-04
By:	Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov)
Status:	Signed
Transaction ID:	CBJCHBCAABAAvn3PKNA5Niq134FDeGHp-cc8Zs2ER7Bc

"Ordinance No. 26-41 Amd Title 4, Ch 2, Art E Temporary Merchants" History

-  Document created by Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov)
2026-08-04 - 10:06:18 PM GMT
-  Document emailed to jessica.wignall@westjordan.utah.gov for signature
2026-08-04 - 10:13:09 PM GMT
-  Email viewed by jessica.wignall@westjordan.utah.gov
2026-08-04 - 10:24:00 PM GMT
-  Signer jessica.wignall@westjordan.utah.gov entered name at signing as Jessica Wignall
2026-08-04 - 10:24:15 PM GMT
-  Document e-signed by Jessica Wignall (jessica.wignall@westjordan.utah.gov)
Signature Date: 2026-08-04 - 10:24:17 PM GMT - Time Source: server - Signature Appearance Selected: MOBILE_DRAW
-  Document emailed to Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov) for signature
2026-08-04 - 10:24:18 PM GMT
-  Email viewed by Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov)
2026-08-04 - 10:31:00 PM GMT
-  Document e-signed by Cindy Quick (Cindy.quick@westjordan.utah.gov)
Signature Date: 2026-08-04 - 10:31:09 PM GMT - Time Source: server - Signature Appearance Selected: IMAGE
-  Document emailed to Dirk Burton (dirk.burton@westjordan.utah.gov) for signature
2026-08-04 - 10:31:10 PM GMT
-  Email viewed by Dirk Burton (dirk.burton@westjordan.utah.gov)
2026-08-05 - 2:42:28 PM GMT



Document e-signed by Dirk Burton (dirk.burton@westjordan.utah.gov)

Signature Date: 2026-08-05 - 2:42:51 PM GMT - Time Source: server - Signature Appearance Selected: IMAGE



Document emailed to Tangee Sloan (tangee.sloan@westjordan.utah.gov) for signature

2026-08-05 - 2:42:53 PM GMT



Email viewed by Tangee Sloan (tangee.sloan@westjordan.utah.gov)

2026-08-07 - 6:41:17 PM GMT



Document e-signed by Tangee Sloan (tangee.sloan@westjordan.utah.gov)

Signature Date: 2026-08-07 - 6:42:09 PM GMT - Time Source: server - Signature Appearance Selected: IMAGE



Agreement completed.

2026-08-07 - 6:42:09 PM GMT

